
 

 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346π2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

January 28, 2015 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

.. 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

January 28, 2015 
Regular Session begins at 7:00 PM

 
1) CONVENE OPEN SESSION_________________________________________________________________ 
1A. Pledge of Allegiance 
1B. Roll Call 
1C.  Approval of Agenda Order 

This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change 
to the agenda sequence. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 
 

2) PRESENTATION                                                                                                                                                                                    _             
City of Colfax Audit Reports as of June 30, 2014, Ingrid Sheipline (Richardson and Co), Auditor 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive City of Colfax Audit Reports as of June 30, 2014 π Discuss and Approve as 
Appropriate 
 
3) CONSENT CALENDAR____________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Consent Calendar 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine in nature and will be approved by one 
blanket motion with a roll call vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless persons request 
specific items to be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action.  Any items removed 
will be considered after the motion to approve the Consent Agenda. If you wish to have an item pulled from the 
Consent Agenda for discussion, please notify the City staff. 
 
3A.  Minutes City Council Meeting of January 14, 2015 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of January 14, 2015. 
3B. Cash Summary Report December 30, 2014 

Recommendation:  Receive and File. 
3C. Quarterly Investment Report 
  Recommendation:  Receive and File 
3D. Approve City Clerk Appointment 
  Recommendation: Approve Resolution 1π2015 Appointing Lorraine Cassidy as City Clerk 
3E. Grass Valley Street Railroad Crossing Construction Schedule 
  Recommendation:  Information only 
3F. Conflict of Interest Update 
  Recommendation: Approve and File 
 
4) COUNCIL, STAFF AND OTHER REPORTS______________________________________________________ 
The purpose of these reports is to provide information to the Council and public on projects, programs, and 
issues discussed at committee meetings and other items of general information. No decisions will be made on 
these issues. If a member of the Council prefers formal action be taken on any committee reports or other 
information, the issue will be placed on a future Council meeting agenda. 
 

4A.  Committee Reports and Informational Items ‐ All Councilmembers 
4B.  Operations Update – City staff 
4C.  Additional Reports – Agency partners 



 

 

 
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346π2313 at least 72 hours 
prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

January 28, 2015 

 

Page 2 of 2 

5) PUBLIC COMMENT______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Members of the audience are permitted to address the Council on matters of concern to the public that are not 
listed on this agenda. Please make your comments as brief as possible. Comments should not exceed three (3) 
minutes in length. The Council cannot act on items not included on this agenda; however, if action is required it 
will be referred to staff. 
 

6) COUNCIL BUSINESS_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
6A. Additional Professional Services Requests for Proposals  

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Information only 

6B. General Plan Policy Updates 
STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
RECOMMENDATION: Receive Update and Discuss as Appropriate 

6C. Risk Assessment Committee Appointments 
  STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager 
  RECOMMENDATION:  Appoint Community Members to Committee 
 
7) ADJOURNMENT________________________________________________________________________ 

 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and posted this agenda 

at Colfax City Hall and Colfax Post Office. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Administrative Remedies must be exhausted prior to action being initiated in a court of law.  If you challenge City Council action in court, you may be 
limited to raising only those issues you or someone else raised at a public hearing described in this notice/agenda, or in written correspondence 
delivered to the City Clerk of the City of Colfax at, or prior to, said public hearing. 

 







 

 

 

 

 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.)

















6 

THE CITY AS A WHOLE 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s 
financial position.  In the case of the City of Colfax, assets exceeded liabilities by 
$16,704,249 at the close of the current fiscal year. 

By far the largest portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets 
(e.g., land, street, sewer and storm drain systems, buildings and park assets, machinery 
and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  
The City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital 
assets is reported net of related debts, it should be noted that the resources needed to 
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

The City’s combined net position for the years ending June 30, 2013 and 2012 are 
summarized (Table 1), as follows: 

 
Table 1

City of Colfax, Net Position
(in Thousands)

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Assets:
Current and
   other assets 1,769$   1,507$   1,316$   572$      3,085$   2,079$   
Capital assets 4,163     3,950     20,998   15,783   25,161   19,733   

   Total Assets 5,932     5,457     22,314   16,355   28,246   21,812   

Liabilities:
Long-term
   liabilities 1,096     1,255     9,956     8,152     11,052   9,407     
Other liabilities 162         109         328         206         490         315         

   Total Liabilities 1,258     1,364     10,284   8,358     11,542   9,722     

Net Position:
Net Investment in 
   captial assets 3,716     3,420     11,279   7,985     14,995   11,405   
Restricted 991         913         -              -              991         913         
Unrestricted (33)         (240)       751         12           718         (228)       

   Total Net Position 4,674$   4,093$   12,030$ 7,997$   16,704$ 12,090$ 

Total
Governmental

Activities
Business
Activities

 
The amount reported for net position of Governmental activities does not include the 
value of the City’s infrastructure (roadways, bridges and storm drainage improvements) 
constructed prior to July 1, 2003.   





8 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 
Governmental Activities – Sources of Revenue 
(Graphic representation of Table 2 in percentages) 

 
 

 
 

Fiscal Year 2012-2013 
Governmental Activities – Program Expenses 

(Graphic representation of Table 2 in percentages) 
 

 

13 of 64







11 

Capital projects expected for fiscal year 2013-2014 include: 
¶ Completion of Sewer project – Pond Liner installation, I&I system 

improvements and SCADA system upgrade. 
¶ Road Rehabilitation improvements and the initial phase of the Railroad 

pedestrian crossing project.   
 
 
 
CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
 
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and 
investors and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances, and to show the 
City’s accountability for the money it receives.  If you have questions about this report or 
need additional financial information, contact the Director of Finance, City of Colfax, 33 
S. Main Street, Colfax, California 95713. 



 

 
 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 
 

17 of 64











14

 

Capital Nonmajor
General Projects Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Total
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1,020,891$  186,316$     497,654$      1,704,861$      
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 
  for doubtful accounts 41,670                              41,670             
Due from other governmental agencies 138,424 44,587         12,669          195,680           
Interest receivable 493              95                256               844                  
Notes receivable                     51,665          51,665             
Due from other funds 5,524                                          5,524               

TOTAL ASSETS 1,207,002$  230,998$     562,244$      2,000,244$      

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 94,652$       3,544$         17,495$        115,691$         
Accrued expenses 8,432                               3,894            12,326             
Unearned revenue 15,928                              15,928             
Due to other funds                                         5,524            5,524               

Total liabilities 119,012       3,544           26,913          149,469           

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 44,587         44,587             

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES 44,587         44,587             

Fund balances:
Nonspendable                     51,665          51,665             
Committed 131,812       131,812           
Restricted 801,710       182,867       483,666        1,468,243        
Unassigned 154,468                            154,468           

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 1,087,990    182,867       535,331        1,806,188        
TOTAL LIABILITIES, 

DEFERRED INFLOWS, AND
FUND BALANCES 1,207,002$  230,998$     562,244$      2,000,244$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF COLFAX

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2014

Major Funds

Audited Financial Statements



















 

 

(This page intentionally left blank.) 
 

Audited Financial Statements





CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

23 

NOTE A – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is a separate self-balancing set of 
accounts.  Each fund was established for the purpose of accounting for specific activities in accordance 
with applicable regulations, restrictions or limitations.  Separate financial statements are provided for 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the last is excluded from the 
government-wide financial statements.  Major individual governmental funds and major individual 
enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation:  The government-wide financial 
statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, as are the proprietary funds financial statements and fiduciary fund statements, with the 
exception of agency funds, which have no measurement focus.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property 
taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements are met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement 
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both 
measurable and available.  Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the 
current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.  For this 
purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 90 days of the end of the 
current fiscal period, with the exception of property taxes.  Property taxes are considered to be available if 
they are collected within 60 days of the current fiscal period. Amounts received after the availability 
period are reported as unavailable revenues.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is 
incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures 
related to compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due. 

Major revenues that are determined to be susceptible to accrual include property taxes and assessments, 
sales taxes, franchise taxes, charges for services, intergovernmental revenues, and earnings on 
investments.  Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year end on behalf of the government are also 
recognized as revenue.  Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when cash is received 
by the government and are recognized as revenue at that time.  Entitlements and shared revenues 
(government mandated nonexchange transactions) are recognized when the City has satisfied all 
applicable eligibility requirements and if the amounts are measurable.  If the grant funds are received 
before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied, the unearned amounts are reported as unearned 
revenue. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund – The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  It accounts for all 
financial resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another 
fund. 

Capital Projects Funds – Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for 
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. 

The City reports the following major enterprise fund: 

Sewer Fund – The Sewer Fund is used to account for the operations of the City’s sewer services. 

Audited Financial Statements

















CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

31 

NOTE C – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

Transfers during the year ended June 30, 2014 were as follows: 

Capital Supplemental Transportation
Projects  Law and Road

Transfers out Fund Enforcement CDBG Fund Total

General Fund 10,625$    10,625$    
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

   Gas Tax 47,799$    47,799      
   Mitigation Funds 1,484$      4,543$      6,027        

1,484$      10,625$    4,543$      47,799$    64,451$    

Governmental
Nonmajor

Transfers in

 

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the 
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them. 

NOTE D – CAPITAL ASSETS 

Governmental capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows: 

(Restated)
Balance at Balance at

June 30, 2013 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2014
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land 758,329$      758,329$      
Construction in progress 45,737          75,337$     121,074        

Total capital assets, 
not being depreciated 804,066        75,337       -                 -                 879,403        

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 4,290,749     4,290,749     
Vehicles 444,259        (24,734)$    419,525        
Machinery and equipment 471,398        (89,100)      382,298        
Furniture and fixtures 6,764                              6,764            

Total capital assets,
being depreciated 5,213,170     -                 (113,834)    -                 5,099,336     

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (822,714)      (118,342)    (941,056)       
Vehicles (385,541)      (28,874)      24,734       (389,681)       
Machinery and equipment (440,816)      (19,091)      88,862       (371,045)       
Furniture and fixtures (6,654)          (110)           (6,764)           

Total accumulated depreciation (1,655,725)   (166,417)    113,596     -                 (1,708,546)    
Capital assets being

depreciated, net 3,557,445     (166,417)    (238)           -                 3,390,790     
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

CAPITAL ASSETS, NET 4,361,511$   (91,080)$    (238)$         -$               4,270,193$   
 

Audited Financial Statements













CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

37 

NOTE G – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description:  Effective April 2008, the City began contributing to the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit plan.  
PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to 
plan members and beneficiaries.  PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for 
participating public entities within the State of California.  All permanent and part-time employees 
working at least 1,000 hours per year are enrolled in PERS.  Under PERS, benefits vest after five years of 
service.  Upon retirement, participants are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable for life, in an 
amount equal to a benefit factor multiplied by their highest average monthly salary over 12 consecutive 
months of employment.  Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by State statute.  
The establishment and amendment of specific benefit provisions of the Plan is authorized by resolution of 
the City Council.  PERS requires plans with less than 100 active participants to participate in risk pools.  
The City participated in the Miscellaneous 2% at 60 Risk Pool.  Copies of the PERS annual financial 
report may be obtained from their Executive Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814.   

Contributions:  Participants in the Plan are required to contribute 5% of their annual covered salary for 
union members and 7% for non-union members.  The City is required to contribute to PERS at an 
actuarially determined rate.  The rate for the year ended June 30, 2014 was 8.435% of the annual covered 
payroll.  The contribution requirement of plan members and the City are established and may be amended 
by PERS.  The City’s contributions for the years ended June 30, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $37,690, 
$33,846, and $26,181, respectively, which was equal to the required contributions. 

NOTE H – INSURANCE 

The City is a member of the Small Cities Organized Risk Effort (SCORE) with other northern California 
cities.  SCORE is a joint powers authority organized in accordance with Article 1, Chapter 5, Division 7, 
Title I of the California Government Fund Programs.  The purpose is to create a common pool of funds to 
be used to meet obligations of the parties to provide workers’ compensation benefits for their employees 
and to provide liability insurance.  SCORE provides claims processing administrative services, risk 
management services and actuarial studies.  A member from each city governs SCORE.  The City of 
Colfax council members do not have significant oversight responsibility, since they evenly share all 
factors of responsibility with the other cities.  The City does not retain the risk of loss.  However, ultimate 
liability for payment of claims and insurance premiums resides with member cities.  SCORE is 
empowered to make supplemental assessments as needed to eliminate deficit positions of member cities.  
If SCORE becomes insolvent, the City is responsible only to the extent of any deficiency in its equity 
balance.  SCORE establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims (including 
future claims settlement expenses) that have been reported but not settled, plus estimates of claims that 
have been incurred but not reported.  Because actual claims costs depend on various factors, the claims 
liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical techniques to produce 
current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency, and other economic and social factors.  
A provision for inflation is implicit in the calculation of estimated future claims costs.  Adjustments to 
claims liabilities are charged or credited to expense in the periods in which they are made. 

Audited Financial Statements



CITY OF COLFAX, CALIFORNIA 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) 

June 30, 2014 

38 

NOTE H – INSURANCE (Continued) 

The City’s insurance coverage and the respective coverage providers are as follows: 

Coverage provider Payment Source
LIABILITY CLAIMS:

- 25,000$           Self-insured Banking layer
25,001$           - 500,000$         Small Cities Organized Risk Effort Shared risk pool

500,001$         - 39,500,000$    California Joint Powers Risk Management 
  Authority

Shared risk pool

WORKERS' COMPENSATION:
- 50,000$           Self-insured Banking layer

50,001$           - 250,000$         Small Cities Organized Risk Effort Shared risk pool
250,001$         - 4,750,000$      Local Agency Workers' Compensation 

  Excess Joint Powers Authority
Shared risk pool

4,750,001$      - Statutory Limit California State Association of Counties 
  Excess Workers' Compensation

Shared risk pool

Amount

 

The City also carries commercial insurance for additional liability and property insurance coverage.  
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from coverage in the prior fiscal year.  
Also, settlements have not exceeded the insurance coverage for the past three fiscal years.  The audited 
financial statements of SCORE are available at SCORE’s office. 

NOTE I – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

The City participates in various federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to 
program compliance audits by the grantors. The audits by the grantors for the year ended June 30, 2014, 
have not yet been conducted. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the 
granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be 
immaterial. 

Since October 25, 2007, the Central Valley Water Board adopted and rescinded a number of cease and 
desist orders that prescribe waste discharge requirements and time schedules for the City at its 
Wastewater Treatment Plant.  On October 13, 2014, the Central Valley Water Board adopted Order R5-
2014-0118, which rescinds Cease and Desist Order R5-2011-0097 issued on December 8, 2011. Waste 
Discharge Requirements Order R5-2013-0045 issued on May 30, 2013, and Cease and Desist Order R5-
2013-0046 issued on May 30, 2013 are still in effect. 

Cease and Desist Order R5-2013-0046 and Water Discharge Requirements Order R5-2013-0045 set final 
effluent limitations for arsenic, which must be complied with by May 30, 2016.  Failure to comply with 
this Order or with the Waste Discharge Requirements may result in the assessment of Administrative 
Civil Liability of up to $10,000 per violation, per day, depending on the violation, pursuant to the 
California Water Code, including sections 13268, 13350, and 13385.  The Central Valley Water Board 
reserves its right to take enforcement actions authorized by law.  









41

Total
Nonmajor

Mitigation Beverage Oil Fire Governmental
Funds Recycling Grant Capital Funds

166,652$       27,966$         4,217$           27,160$         497,654$       
-                     

                                                                                        12,669           
90                  16                  1                    14                  256                

                                                                  51,665           

166,742$       27,982$         4,218$           27,174$         562,244$       

                                            553$                                    17,495$         
8$                  315                                      3,894             

                                                                  5,524             
-                    8                    868                                      26,913           

                                                                                        51,665           
166,742$       27,974           3,350             27,174$         483,666         
166,742         27,974           3,350             27,174           535,331         

166,742$       27,982$         4,218$           27,174$         562,244$       

Special Revenue 

52 of 64







Richardson & Company, LLP 550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 

Sacramento, California 95825 
Telephone: (916) 564-8727 

FAX: (916) 564-8728 

44 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH  
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

City Council 
City of Colfax, California 
Colfax, California 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental 
activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of 
the City of Colfax, California (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have 
issued our report thereon dated January 6, 2015. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  

ITEM 2







To the City Council 
Page 2 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements; therefore, our audit involves judgment about the number of transactions to be 
examined and the areas to be tested. 

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment, including internal 
control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and to design the 
nature, timing, and extent of further audit procedures.  Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, 
(2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental 
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees acting on behalf of 
the entity.  We noted no material weaknesses in internal controls as a result of our audit. 

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies.  The significant 
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note A to the financial statements.  No new 
accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies were not changed during the 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

We noted no transaction entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus.  All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in 
the proper period. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statement prepared by management and are 
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about 
future events.  Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the 
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ 
significantly from those expected.  The most sensitive estimates affecting the City’s financial statements 
were determining the depreciable lives and methods used for capital assets, allowance for doubtful 
accounts and the valuation of donated capital assets.  We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used 
to develop the estimates in determining that they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.  

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our 
audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the 
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of 
management.  The attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements.  
Management has determined that their effect is immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate to the 
financial statements taken as a whole.  In addition, no adjustments were noted as a result of our audit 
other than reclassification adjustments for financial statement presentation only. 

ITEM 2
58 of 64





Richardson & Company, LLP 550 Howe Avenue, Suite 210 

Sacramento, California 95825 
 

Telephone: (916) 564-8727 
FAX: (916) 564-8728 

City Council 
City of Colfax 
Colfax, California 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Colfax (the 
City) for the year ended June 30, 2014, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, we considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal 
control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or 
material weaknesses and, therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been 
identified.  We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

During our audit, we became aware of the following matters that warrant your attention. 

Risk Assessment Plan 

We noted that the City does not have a formal risk assessment plan to identify those risks within the City 
that could result in fraud or material misstatement of the financial statements, and then to implement 
internal controls to mitigate those identified risks.  We recommend the City develop a risk assessment 
plan to identify potential risk areas and then ensure controls or processes are in place to mitigate those 
risks.  This risk assessment should be performed on a periodic basis.  In addition, a Committee of the City 
Council, serving as the Audit Committee, should be involved in this risk assessment process as well. 

All other prior year comments have been adequately addressed. 

New Pronouncements 

In June 2012, the GASB approved Statement No. 68, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions.”  
This Statement requires governments providing defined benefit pension plans to recognize their long-term 
obligation for pension benefits as liability on the statement of net position and to more comprehensively 
and comparably measure the annual costs of pension benefits.  Historically, GASB’s pension standards 

ITEM 2



City Council 
City of Colfax 
Page 2 
 
 
viewed the obligation to provide benefits as belonging to the plan, rather than to the employers.  As a 
result, employers disclosed the amount of unfunded pension liability in notes to their financial statements 
instead of recognizing a liability on the face of the statement of net position.  As the City participates in a 
multi-employer cost-sharing plan, the City will be required to report a liability equivalent to their 
proportionate share of the net pension liability of the plan as well as the related pension expense and any 
deferred inflows or deferred outflow of resources.  Historically, the City has only included their required 
contributions as an expense.  Based on the June 30, 2012 actuarial valuation, the City’s share of the 
unfunded liability is approximately $45,000.  The provisions of this Statement are effective beginning 
with the June 15, 2015 financial statements. 

We would like to take this opportunity to acknowledge the courtesy and assistance extended to us during 
the course of the audit.  This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council, 
management, and others within the organization and does not affect our report dated January 6, 2015 on 
the financial statements of the City. 

 

January 6, 2015 

ITEM 2













City of Colfax 3 

City Council Minutes January 14, 2015 

 

  Reported that at the recent Project Go  meeting, he was reelected to the Finance 

Committee 
 

4B. Operations Updates – City Staff 

City Manager Miller  

 Reminded Council of the webinar version of the Mayorôs and Councilmemberôs 

Academy hosted in his office Wednesday and Thursday.  Tomorrowôs topics 

include Relationships between Council and Management Staff and 

Communications and Media.  Videos may be available as well. 

 City Manager Miller asked Councilmember Delfino to introduce Deleste Magre 

the new reporter for the Colfax Record.  Councilmember Delfino welcomed Ms. 

Magre mentioning that she is well-educated and will be an asset to our 

community. 

 Announced that Lorraine Cassidy, Interim City Clerk through a contract agency, 

was the top candidate in City Clerk recruitment and she has accepted the offer of 

regular employment.  Councilmember Hesch presented her with flowers as a 

welcome from Council. 

 Informed Council that Colfax volunteers, Cathy Keifer and Nancy Hageman are 

submitting a narrative of Colfax to the AAA tour book. 

 Ms. Keifer has also secured four additional train-shaped plant holders for our 

historic streetlights. These will be installed soon. 

 The Wastewater Treatment Plant is online and received a ñclean bill of healthò 
from the water board during a recent inspection. 

 The Economic Development Board will meet on January 15
th

. 

 City Hall will be closed Monday January 19 for the Martin Luther King holiday. 

 Reminded Council that Colfax will be hosting an AB1234 Ethics Training Class 

on January 21, 2015 from 9:30-11:30AM.  We expect some attendees from our 

neighboring agencies who were grateful that Colfax arranged the presentation, 

and it gives us an opportunity to show off Colfax. 

 The Chamber Annual meeting will be January 28 and more information will come 

later from the Chamber President 

 Saturday, January 24
th

 the Colfax Grad Night Committee will host a Crab Feed at 

the SVCC. 
 

4C. Additional Reports – Agency Partners 

Sergeant Ty Conners, Colfax Sub-station Commander  

 The Sub-station construction continues to progress.  Council can stop by for a tour 

anytime the workers are there.   

 Officers are participating in an Advanced Training for the next several 

Wednesdays. 

 Please let Sergeant Conners know if you need more or less detail on the monthly 

Sheriffôs report. 

 

 

 

3 of 9





City of Colfax 5 

City Council Minutes January 14, 2015 

 

 Reiterated her request that the City place a sign directing people to the SVCC. 

 Commended City Staff for great public relations and customer service. 

 Requested that Council keep up the transparency. 

 

City Manager Miller responded to public comments: 

 Gearhart has been posted with a notice of demolition.  Demolition must occur by 

January 27 or the City will act demolish the building.  City Attorney Cabral added 

that if the building is not torn down by the 27
th

 the City will go to Court for an 

order to Tear-Down. 

 Notices will be sent soon to the owners of the Hotel and other blighted buildings . 

Councilmember Delfino responded to public comments: 

 The City was not able to obtain funding for the pool in 2011, but he is willing to 

give the idea another try. 

 As a temporary measure, the Kiwanis Club is raising funds for fuel (firewood and 

propane) to help in the absence of a Warming/Cooling Center. 

 Requested that a State of Jefferson Presentation be placed on the Agenda.  City 

Manager Miller responded that this out of the purview of the City but certainly 

can be accommodated with a presentation outside of Council Meeting hours ï 

perhaps before a meeting. 

Mayor Douglass responded to public comments: 

 Perhaps a Heating/Cooling Center could be funded using the released funds from 

the Bianchini Trust.  City Manager Miller commented that the Heating/Cooling 

Center would fall under the jurisdiction of the County rather than the City.  

 
 

6 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

6A. Six Month Service Report for Placer County Sheriff’s Department 

STAFF PRESENTATION: Mark Miller, City Manager and Ty Conners, Colfax Station 

Commander 

RECOMMENDATION: Discuss and Direct Staff 

City Manager Miller stated that the City signed a 3 year contract with the Sheriffôs 

department which will expire in June of 2015.  The City has an extremely productive 

relationship with the Sheriffôs Department.  The contract provides for increases to the 

base of $603,432.  The increase this year was about $32,000 and Council voted in July to 

reduce the hours of services slightly for a 6 month period in order to keep costs 

essentially the same as the previous fiscal year.  Sergeant Conners explained the statistics 

for the past 6 months and requested that Council consider reinstating the hours of service 

for the remainder of the year.  Council and the public discussed the issue.  Councilôs 

concerns included looking at the long range effects of continually increasing sheriffôs 

costs and the risk of increased crime due to predictable hours for Sheriff Department 

service reduction.  Councilmember Delfino suggested that reinstating half of the service 

hours on a rotating basis might be a good compromise, continuing some of the cost 

savings and eliminating the predictability of hours.  Council agreed to reconsider 

increased hours during the mid-year budget discussion and requested Sergeant Conners 

provide statistics from July ï February.  

 





















6 of 12















1 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

FOR THE January 28, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

DATE: January 20, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax – Quarterly Investment Report 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UNπFUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Quarterly Investment Report: December 31, 2014.

 

SUMMARY: 
 

Staff recommends that the Council accepts and files the Colfax Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter 
ended December 31, 2014. 
 

BACKGROUND AND ANALYSIS:  
 

California Government Code Section 53646 and the City of Colfax Investment Policy require a quarterly 
investment report be submitted to the City Council.  Such report shall include at least the following 
information: 

¶ Types of Investments; 

¶ Name of the institution in which funds are invested or deposited; 

¶ Date of Maturity, if applicable; 

¶ Par and dollar amount investment for all securities; 

¶ Percent distribution of each type of investment or deposit; current market value as of the date of 
the report, including source of the valuation except those under LAIF; 

¶ Rate of interest 

¶ Average weighted yield of all investments 

¶ A statement relating the report to the City’s Investment Policy; and 

¶ A statement that there are sufficient funds to meet the City’s next six months’ financial obligations. 
 

The current practice for cash management is to maintain an operating balance between $75,000 and 
$150,000 in the City’s US Bank Corporate checking account.  This account accumulates Earnings Credits 
based on the account balance which offset/reduce monthly service charges.  City funds in excess of 
targeted operating balance are transferred to the State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 
on a weekly basis.  The checking account balance may be reported at an amount higher than the target 
balance by the Bank due to the timing of city checks being processed by vendors/service providers. 
 
 
 

ITEM 3C



2 

 

 
 
 

We have begun preliminary analysis of investment opportunities outside the corporate checking and LAIF 
accounts.  Our investment policy dictates that City should have liquid short term securities to meet six 
month’s financial obligations (for fiscal year 2014π2015 six months of expenses is approximately 
$1,897,000), which leaves a current long term investment balance of $714,000.  Preliminary rate analysis 
for Certificate of Deposits (CD) with US Bank requires a minimum balance of $1,000,000 (uncollateralized) 
are reflected below:  
 

 
 

Staff will continue to monitor balances and investment opportunities. 
 

CONCLUSION:   
 

The attached schedule Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool satisfies the State’s reporting requirements.  
Additionally, we have determined: 

¶ The investments held at December 31, 2014 conform to the City Investment Policy adopted by 
Resolution 29π2014, 

¶ The composite yield of the City’s investment pool to be the rate of .26%, 

¶ There are sufficient funds on deposit to meet all anticipated City expenditures for the period 
January 01, 2015 through June 30, 2015. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  

1. Analysis of Treasury Investment Pool 
2. State of California – PMIA and LAIF Performance Report (QE 12/31/14) 
3. State of California – PMIA Average Monthly Effective Yields 
4. Local Agency Investment Fund – Program Description 

ITEM 3C

















 
 
 
 
 
 
  

FOR THE JANUARY 28, 2015 COUNCIL MEETING 
 

FROM: Mark Miller, City Manager
PREPARED BY: Lorraine Cassidy, City Clerk

DATE: January 21, 2015 
SUBJECT: City of Colfax Local Agency Biennial Notice 

 

X N/A   FUNDED   UNπFUNDED AMOUNT:  FROM FUND:   
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept and File City of Colfax Local Agency Biennial Notice. 

 
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY: 
 
On July 23, 2002, the City Council adopted Resolution 44π2002 to adopt a conflict of interest as required by 
the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code §87100 et seq)  On January 9, 2013 council amended 
the Conflict of Interest Code for the City of Colfax (attached). 
 
The Political Reform Act requires every government agency to review its conflictπofπinterest code biennially 
to determine if it is accurate or, alternatively, that the code must be amended.  Staff has conducted a 
biennial review to insure that the agency’s code includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or 
participate in making governmental decisions.  Staff has determined that no amendment is required. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

Accept and file the attached Local Agency Biennial Notice 

 

 
ATTACHMENT: 

Conflict of Interest Code – Amended 1π9π2013 
2014 Local Agency Biennial Notice 
 

ITEM 3F
1 of 6







 

 
 
 
 
 

Notes: 
 

1.  Consultants.  2 Cal.Code Regs. §18701(a)(2) defines “ consultant” as an individual 
who pursuant to a contract with a state or local government agency: 

 
(A)      Makes a government decision whether to:  

(i) Approve a rate, rule or regulation;  
(ii) Adopt or enforce a law; 

 (iii)  Issue, deny, suspend, or revoke any permit, license, application, certificate, 
approval, order, or similar authorization or entitlement; 

(iv) Authorize the agency to enter into, modify, or renew a contract provided 
it is the type of contract that requires agency approval; 

(v)  Grant agency approval to a contract that requires approval and to which 
the agency is a party, or to the specifications for such a contract; 

(vi)  Grant agency approval to a plan, design, report, study, or similar item;  
(vii)  Adopt, or grant agency approval of, policies, standards, or guidelines for 

the agency, or for any subdivision thereof; or 
 

(B) Serves in a staff capacity with the agency and in that capacity participates in 
making a governmental decision as defined in regulation 18702.2 or performs the same 
or substantially all the same duties for the agency that would otherwise be performed by 
an individual holding a position specified in the agency's Conflict of Interest Code. 

 
The disclosure required of consultants shall be determined on a case by case 

basis by the City Manager in consultation with the City Attorney. The City Manager 
may make a determination as to what disclosure, if any, is required by any particular 
consultant. The City Manager’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for 
public inspection in the same manner and location as this Conflict of Interest Code.

ITEM 3F





http://www.fppc.ca.gov
mailto:advice%40fppc.ca.gov?subject=









	00 1-28-15 Agenda
	02 Audit Report for Electronic Copy
	Colfax Agenda 2014
	Colfax 2014 AFS
	INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
	colfax mda.pdf
	MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
	FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
	USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT
	Reporting the City as a Whole
	Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
	THE CITY AS A WHOLE
	CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION



	excel 1.pdf
	GWF S.O.N.A.-page 12
	GWF SOA page 13
	GF BS - page 14
	BS REC to NET ASSETS- page 15
	GF IS page 16
	IS REC to NET ASSETS- page 17
	GF 2010 BCS-pg 18
	PF BS-page 19
	PF IS-page 20
	PF CF-page 21

	excel 2.pdf
	NONMAJOR FUNDS BS-pg 40-41
	NONMAJOR FUNDS IS-pg 42-43


	Colfax SAS 114 Required Communication Letter
	Colfax Management Letter
	Appropriations Limit Letter 2014

	03A Minutes with Committee Assignments
	150114 Minutes
	150114 Committee Assignments

	03B Cash Summary Report for December 2014
	2015-06 Staff Report Cash Summary Dec 2014
	Cash Summary Data

	03C Quarterly Investment Report
	2015-06 Staff Report Quarterly Investment Report Dec 2014
	Investment Report Data

	03D Appointing City Clerk
	Staff Report Ctiy Clerk Appointment
	Resolution 1-2015 Appoint City Clerk

	03E 2015 Construction Schedule for GV Street Project
	03F Conflict of Interest Biennial Notice
	Staff Report Conflict of Interest - no change for biennial update
	1-9-2013 Conflict of Interest Code attachments
	Local_Agency_Biennial_Notice (1)

	06A  Professional Services RFP
	06B  GP Policy Update
	06C Financial Risk Assessment Committee Volunteers
	Staff Report Financial Risk Committee Volunteers
	Volunteers for the Financial Risk Assessment Committee


	Name of Agency: 
	Mailing Address: 
	Contact Person: 
	Phone No: 
	EMail: 
	An Amendment is required: Off
	include new position: Off
	revise disclosure: Off
	revise the titles: Off
	Delete position: Off
	Other: Off
	Other  describe: 
	The code is currently under review by the code reviewing body: Off
	No amendment is required: Off
	Date: 


